
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

         11 January 2016 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

will meet on 
Tuesday, 19 January 2016 

beginning at 
6:15 pm 

in 
rooms 16/17 Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
TO: Councillor Anne Winstanley (Chair), Councillor Daniel Clarke (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Keith House Councillor Wayne Irish 
Councillor Godfrey G Olson Councillor Derek R Pretty 
Councillor Roger M Smith Councillor Mrs Maureen A Sollitt 
Councillor Steve Sollitt Councillor Jane Welsh 

 
 
Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer Tel:  023 8068 8112; 

Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

  
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk. 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 
item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 

Services Officer above 
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

 
Eastleigh House 

Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



 

 

AGENDA 

 
1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 4 January 2016.  
  
2. Apologies     
 
3. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.  

  
4. Further Electoral Review - Council Initial Recommendations and Proposals    

(Pages 5 - 8) 
 
Appendix 2 - to follow 

 
 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 1 February 2016 at 6:15 pm 

in the Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, 
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 



1 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 4 January 2016  (6:15 pm – 6:39 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Winstanley (Chair); Councillors Clarke, House, Irish, Olson, 
Pretty, R Smith, Mrs Sollitt, Sollitt and Mrs Welsh 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation at this time. 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2015 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 
 

4. ELECTORAL REVIEW OF HAMPSHIRE - DRAFT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services which advised that the Local Government Boundary 
Commission for England (LGBCE) had published its draft 
recommendations on the current electoral review of Hampshire County 
Council. This Council had been invited to submit its views on these as part 
of the consultation process, which was running until 11 January 2016, for 
interested parties to make comments on these. 
 
In respect of the Eastleigh Borough area, the LGBCE stated in their draft 
recommendations report that they “have partly based our draft 
recommendations on the County Council’s proposals for eight councillors. 
The proposals for West End resulted in a division with poor electoral 
equality. The geographical location of West End means it is difficult to 
include parts of Eastleigh or Hedge End in the division. Therefore, we 
have decided to create a two-member Hedge End and West End division 
which includes both the Hedge End and West End communities. We 

Agenda Item 1

1



2 
 

received submissions from respondents in Botley who objected to dividing 
the parish between divisions. However, in order to achieve good electoral 
equality between divisions, we have included the West Botley area in 
Hedge End and West End division”.  A map was attached at Appendix 1 to 
the report to show this. 

Whilst an eighth County Member was sought by this Committee, the 
intention was not to have this within a re-working of an existing division as 
all of the other divisions within the Borough were represented by a single 
Member (indeed the majority of County Divisions were represented by a 
single Member).   
 
It was noted that the County Council was looking at an alternative model 
for three Divisions broadly in the Hedge End, West End and Botley 
(HEWEB) area and Fair Oak which could be considered by this 
Committee.  A breakdown of electorates for these was shown at Appendix 
2 to the report.  There were clear advantages to this: the Horton 
Heath/West End development area would be in one County Division; 
Botley would be kept in one County Division; a small new polling district 
would be avoided in Grange Park and the ‘double division’ referred to in 
the previous paragraph would be removed.  However, West End would 
remain split. 
 
Given that the Boundary Commission would not accept any proposals that 
were more than 10% above or below the average for the County, there 
was not a perfect solution. 
 
All town and parish councils in the Borough had been consulted. 
Bursledon Parish Council had suggested a slight alteration: “That the 
northern boundary of the Hamble Division should be coincident with 
Peewit Hill and Peewit Hill Close, then crossing Dodwell Lane to Pylands 
Lane and the main road through the Manor Farm Country Park to the 
current Botley boundary.” Members were in agreement with this 
suggestion and also endorsed the proposals of Hampshire County 
Council, including the creation of two single member divisions namely 
‘Botley and Hedge End North’, and ‘Hedge End and West End South’. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
(1) That the Borough Council notes the response of the Local 

Government Boundary Commission for England and endorses 
the proposals of Hampshire County Council in reply thereto 
including the creation of two single member divisions namely 
‘Botley and Hedge End North’, and ‘Hedge End and West End 
South’; 

 
(2) That the Borough Council would like to see that the northern 

boundary of the Hamble Division be coincident with Peewit Hill 
and Peewit Hill Close, then cross Dodwell Lane to Pylands 

2



3 
 

Lane and the main road through the Manor Farm Country Park 
to the current Botley boundary; and 

 
(3) That this resolution formulates the Borough Council’s 

response to the current Local Government Boundary 
Commission for England’s electoral review of Hampshire. 

 
 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

19 January 2016 

FURTHER ELECTORAL REVIEW – COUNCIL INITIAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS AND PROPOSALS 

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that this Committee makes recommendations to the Local 
Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) on future polling districts 
and ward boundaries, given the earlier decision to reduce the Council’s size of 
membership to 39 Members. 
 

Summary 

The report, and specifically appendix 2 herewith, seeks to assist the Committee to 
make recommendations to the LGBCE with regard to the future warding 
arrangements of Eastleigh Borough Council. 

 
Statutory Powers 
 
Section 56 (2), Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009. 

 

Introduction 

1. On 5 September 2014, the LGBCE advised this Council that it had determined 
that a Further Electoral Review (FER) of the Council’s Electoral Arrangements 
should take place.  A FER is a review by the LGBCE, carried out under the 
2009 Act cited above.  Such a review is triggered where the LGBCE consider 
that ‘significant’ electoral inequality exists.  Four of the 19 wards (21%) have 
an electoral variance of greater than 10%.  The outlier ward is Hedge End 
Grange Park, which has 30% more electors than the average. 

2. The timetable for the process is attached at Appendix 1 to the report. 

3. The first significant action for the Council was to make a recommendation (to 
the LGBCE) of its future size of membership.  This was carried out at Council 
on 15 October 2015, where a recommendation of reducing the Council size to 
39 Members was made.  This was then supported by the LGBCE.   

4. All-out elections would take place in May 2018, with the “thirds system” 
coming back into operation over subsequent elections. 

Agenda Item 4

5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

5. The LGBCE then launched the initial public consultation period for a new 
pattern of electoral wards on 24 November 2015; this runs to 1 February 
2016.  As part of this, this Council is asked to submit its comments, proposals 
and recommendations. 

6. The Leader of the Council has prepared these, in consultation with Local Area 
Committee teams, and is attached to this report at Appendix 2 for discussion.  
The starting point is considering new polling districts (given significant 
changes in the electorate since the last review in 2002), which, in turn, will 
give rise to potential new ward boundaries, in the context of the Council’s 
arrangements for Local Area Committee and internal governance.   

Current Electorate and Electorate Forecasts 

7. Schedule 2 to the 2009 Act requires that when making its recommendations at 
the conclusion of the FER, the LGBCE should take into account any changes 
to the number and distribution of Local Government electors likely to take 
place within the five years following the end of the FER.  Since the review is 
due to be concluded in the autumn of 2016, this means that electoral 
forecasts are required to the latter part of 2021 as well.   

8. This Council has the benefit of its FER following shortly behind the County 
Council’s, and thus much of the process and criteria adopted by the County 
Council has been accepted as accurate by the LGBCE.  The County Council 
devised its own 2021 electoral estimates utilising the 2014 Small Area 
Population Forecast (SAPF).  The SAPF model utilises the following data 
sources: 

• 2011 Census / known dwelling stock 

• Number of dwellings demolished 

• Births and deaths numbers / Fertility and Mortality rates / Child health 
data 

• Migration rates 

• New housing supply figures including type, phasing etc 

• Population forecasts by single year of age and gender 

9. The SAPF model is a proven forecasting model developed by the County 
Council and is highly regarded. 

Financial Implications 

10. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report, other than 
officer time taken to work on the review. 

6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Risk Assessment 

11. It is a requirement in law (the 2009 Act cited above) that the Council responds 
to the LGBCE, otherwise it will have no input into the FER process.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

12. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, 
or fostering good relations between different people.  An Equality Impact 
Assessment has not been carried out.  However, ensuring electoral equality is 
not only a legislative requirement but makes good business sense ie that 
Members have a roughly comparable number of electors within each of their 
wards. 

Conclusion 

13. This report seeks the progression of the Council’s recommendations on future 
warding arrangements to be made to the LGBCE by the close of the 
consultation period on 1 February 2016. 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

Date: 29 December 2015 
Contact Officer: Jon Brown 
Tel No: 023 8068 8124 
e-mail: jon.brown@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Two 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: None 

7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Appendix 1: Further Electoral Review (FER) Timetable 

 

Stage Date(s) 

Preliminary period / initial 
discussions between EBC and 

LGBCE 

May – October 2015 

Council size recommendation 
from EBC to LGBCE 

17 November 2015 

Warding patterns consultation 
starts 

24 November – 1 February 2016 

LGBCE tour of the Borough  March 2016 

Draft recommendations from 
LGBCE 

19 April 2016 

Consultation on draft 
recommendations 

10 May – 4 July 2016 

Further LGBCE tour August 2016 

Final recommendations 
considered by LGBCE 

16 August 2016 

Final recommendations 
published 

6 September 2016 

Community Governance Review* End of 2016 / 2017* 

Implementation  May 2018 (all-out) elections 

 

* EBC will likely need to conduct its own community governance review after the 
conclusion of the FER, in order to ensure that parish boundaries tie in with the new 
Borough polling districts and warding arrangements. 

  

8


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 Further Electoral Review - Council Initial Recommendations and Proposals
	Appendix 2


